
Request approval to accept up to $5 million in additional funding from the California Energy 
Commission (CEC) for the Internal Services Department to implement an Energy Investment 
Program at various County facilities.  

SUBJECT

April 17, 2012

The Honorable Board of Supervisors
County of Los Angeles
383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration
500 West Temple Street 
Los Angeles, California 90012
 
Dear Supervisors:

APPROVE INTERGOVERNMENTAL CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH 
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION TO IMPLEMENT 
COUNTY FACILITY ENERGY REVOLVING FUND PROGRAM

(3 VOTES) (ALL DISTRICTS)

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT YOUR BOARD:

1. Authorize the Director of Internal Services Department (ISD) or his designee to execute an 
amendment to the Intergovernmental Contract (Contract) with the CEC to provide up to $5.0 million 
in additional Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG) funds to administer and 
implement an Energy Investment Program for County facility energy projects.  

2. Find that approval of these actions is categorically exempt pursuant to the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
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PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION

In September 2009, your Board approved the creation of the County Office of Sustainability within 
ISD to respond to legislation, regulation, and policy related to climate change, and to coordinate 
energy efficiency, conservation, and sustainability programs within the County and the region.  
Subsequently, your Board directed ISD to represent the County in applying for American Recovery 
and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) grants administered through the Department of Energy (DOE) and 
State energy agencies.  As a result, ISD has received and is currently administering the following 
grants:  

•    $15.4 million from the formula-allocated Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant 
(EECBG) program;

•    $12.2 million from the California Energy Commission (CEC) Energy Efficiency and Conservation 
Block Grant program.  Under the existing agreement, the CEC may also allocate an additional $5 
million for the County to manage on behalf of other jurisdictions in the State.    

•    $14 million from the $30 million Competitive Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant, 
termed Better Buildings Program (BBP), awarded to the County and three other California regional 
entities.

The proposed amendment to the current CEC Contract would provide up to $5.0 million in additional 
funding to the County to implement an Energy Investment Program (EIP) designed by ISD, which will 
provide a long-term funding source for energy efficiency projects in County facilities.  The fund will 
work as follows:

•    The EIP is provided with an initial budget to fund energy projects in County buildings.  

•    The projects are implemented and the utility savings realized from the projects are measured and 
verified.  The savings are then used to “pay back” the EIP until the cost of each project is fully 
recovered.

•    Once project costs are recovered, the Department proprietor for the building receives the full 
benefit of the utility savings going forward, and an improved building environment.

•    The EIP is continuously replenished and can be tapped to fund other County building energy 
projects.  Each project will similarly use utility savings to “pay back” the fund.

In 1994, under the Board’s direction, ISD created the Energy Management Division (EMD) to 
administer and implement energy projects in County facilities.  Since then EMD has overseen the 
completion of nearly 400 projects resulting in cumulative utility savings estimated at approximately 
$150 million to date, and a current average utility savings of nearly $20 million annually.  

ISD has used a combination of investor-owned and municipal utility funding, municipal lease 
financing, general fund budget allocations, and litigation proceeds to fund these projects.  However, 
finding a continuous, stable source of funding for energy projects has prevented the development of 
strategy for implementing comprehensive measures in County facilities over a set planning horizon.  
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Utilizing these CEC grant funds will save limited County general fund dollars, and will ensure 
increased, long-term utility savings in County buildings.  It is estimated that the $5 million grant from 
the CEC will result in over $18 million in utility savings over a ten year period.

Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals
These actions support Goal 1, Operational Effectiveness, by obtaining external funding to promote 
environmentally responsible practices.  

FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING

Due to lower-than-expected utilities expenditures, ISD’s Fiscal Year (FY) 2011-12 Utilities Budget 
has sufficient available appropriation for anticipated EIP expenditures during the remainder of the 
fiscal year.  For grant-funded EIP expenditures that continue in FY 2012-13, ISD will include 
sufficient appropriation in its FY 2012-13 Final Changes budget request.   

This action will not impact net County cost.  Requests for activities beyond FY 2012-13 will be 
submitted with ISD’s annual Utilities budget request.

ISD will administer the EIP utilizing the CEC grant funds as the initial funding source.   Departments 
that receive the benefits from the projects in the form of lower utility costs will repay the Utilities 
Budget for the project costs over a fixed period of years. The annual payments will approximate the 
utility cost savings from the EIP.  For most projects, it is expected that the cumulative utility savings 
will fully offset the project costs within two to four years.  

Departments will benefit from the lower utility costs when the project repayment is completed.  The 
Utilities Budget will reinvest the project repayments into more projects to continually implement 
efficiencies in countywide utility operations.

FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

On April 22, 2010, ISD was notified by the CEC of its intention to award an intergovernmental 
contract through the Department of General Services in the amount of $8 million to the County to 
expand the Energy Upgrade California - Los Angeles (EUCLA) program’s marketing, education, 
outreach and workforce development activities to other cities in the County.   The intergovernmental 
contract was awarded under a sole source statutory exemption using non-State Energy Program 
EECBG funds.  On June 10, 2010, your Board delegated authority to the Director of ISD to execute 
all required documents and to subsequently approve any required time extensions, modifications, or 
amendments to the contract with the CEC.

In July 2011, CEC amended that contract to provide an additional $1.2 million to support the EUCLA 
program by developing more comprehensive marketing efforts into cities throughout the County 
through collaboration with the Councils of Governments and directly with local governments.  This 
funding was approved in the FY 2011-12 Utilities Final Adopted budget.
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On March 6, 2012, your Board approved an additional $8 million CEC amendment, which provided 
$3 million in funding for various financing programs in support of EUCLA, including Loan Loss 
Reserve programs for private residential and multifamily financing programs, debt service reserves 
for non-residential PACE liens, and a similar revolving loan fund for training and certification costs 
undertaken by qualified EUCLA contractors.  For the remainder of the funding provided by this 
amendment, the CEC may provide up to $5 million for the County to manage on behalf of other 
jurisdictions. 

This latest amendment will provide up to $5 million in additional funding for the County building 
energy revolving fund program.  The amendment ensures that the CEC can enforce the DOE 
requirements for these financing programs beyond the current term of the Contract, and adds 
contingency language ensure all Contract funds are spent effectively and within the interests of the 
DOE ARRA program even after the term of the ARRA grants.  The Contract will be effective upon 
execution through June 2017.  

The CEC has scheduled approval of this amendment at its meeting of April 11, 2012, and will 
provide the County with a resolution acknowledging approval of the amendment thereafter.  
Attachment I provides the Contract Amendment Proposal to be placed on the CEC’s April 11, 2012, 
Commission meeting agenda, indicating their intent to amend the agreement with the County.  

The terms and conditions of the Contract amendment will become part of the current CEC Contract 
and have been approved as to form by County Counsel.  

ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION

The project meets the criteria set forth in Section 15308 of the State CEQA Guidelines and Class 8 
of the County's Environmental Document Reporting Procedures and Guidelines, Appendix G, in that 
it is an action taken by a regulatory agency, as authorized by State law, to assure the maintenance, 
restoration, enhancement, or protection of the environment where the regulatory process involves 
procedures for protection of the environment.

The project is within a class of projects that has been determined not to have a significant effect on 
the environment. In addition, there are no cumulative impacts, unusual circumstances, or other 
limiting factors that would make the exemption inapplicable based on the project records.  Upon 
approval by your Board, ISD will file a Notice of Exemption with the County Clerk in accordance with 
Section 15062 of the State CEQA Guidelines. 

CONTRACTING PROCESS

This intergovernmental contract amendment will be negotiated by ISD and CEC to define the scope 
of work and deliverables for the administration and implement the County building EIP.  

The Honorable Board of Supervisors
4/17/2012
Page 4



IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES (OR PROJECTS)

Approval of these actions will facilitate additional, widespread implementation of energy projects in 
County buildings; produce utility savings in County facilities which can then be used to fund future 
projects, and provide a secure and predictable source of energy project funding to support 
development of a long-term energy strategic plan for County infrastructure.  

CONCLUSION

The Executive Office of the Board of Supervisors is requested to return one stamped copy of the 
approved Board letter to the Director of ISD.

TOM TINDALL

Director

Enclosures

c: Chief Executive Officer 
Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Executive Officer, Board of Supervisors
County Counsel

Respectfully submitted,

TT:HC:AR 
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